
_______                           1                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

DESOTO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

ALLEN LATIMER, PRESIDENT 2008 PRESIDING 
 

September 2, 2008 
 
 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
The September 2, 2008 meeting of the DeSoto County Board of Supervisors was called to order 
by Supervisor Allen Latimer, Board President. 

 
Sheriff Bill Rasco of the DeSoto County Sheriff’s Department was present and did open the 
DeSoto County Board of Supervisors meeting in a regular session to hear any and all business 
to come before the Board.  The following were present: 

  
       Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------------District 1   
   Supervisor Eugene C. Thach-----------------District 2 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------------District 3  
   Supervisor Allen Latimer---------------------District 4  

   Supervisor Tommy Lewis--------------------District 5  
   W. E. Sluggo Davis---------------------------Chancery Clerk 
   Michael Garriga-------------------------------County Administrator 
   Tony Nowak -----------------------------------Board Attorney 
   Sheriff Bill Rasco------------------------------Sheriff 
 
 

B.  INVOCATION 
 

Supervisor Eugene Thach presented the invocation. 
 

 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AUGUST MINUTES 

 
The official minutes of the Board of Supervisors were read for the month of August, 2008 
pursuant to Section 19-3-27 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, Annotated.  Supervisor Bill 
Russell made the motion and Supervisor Tommy Lewis seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes for the month of August, 2008.   The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 
 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. FY 2009 County Budget 
2. 2009 Millage Levy  
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Tommy Lewis seconded the 
motion to open the Public Hearing for the 2009 Board of Supervisors County budget. The 
motion passed by a unanimous vote. 
 
County Administrator Michael Garriga said the Board had asked him to review the budget 
again to accommodate the Board’s wishes in a few areas. He said the Board asked that he 
look at a 4% pay raise for county employees and the senior citizen bus program. Mr. Garriga 
said that he and the Comptroller Tom Arnold looked at the fuel budget but they did not feel 
comfortable changing it. He said Justice Court fines were increased to reflect more revenue 
and we have already taken in the newly budgeted level of revenue in Justice Court during FY 



_______                           2                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

08 year to date. We still have the remainder of 08. Mr. Garriga said, previously, we did not 
include delinquent tax excess bids in the budget and $300,000 has been added in that line 
item alone. He said they covered the adjustments the Board asked him to make in the revised 
budget. He said they still feel those adjustments were conservative estimates for the budget. 
Mr. Garriga said, with some of those adjustments that were previously made in the budget, 
vehicles were removed. The Sheriff was concerned about not being able to purchase vehicles 
for the Sheriff’s Department. He said, by reviewing the revenue estimates, he was able to 
adjust the Sheriff’s budget to add 10 vehicles in the FY 09 budget.  
 
Mr. Garriga said that Supervisor Lewis was concerned about widening the gap between 
lower salaries and higher salaries. He said we will have to review the salaries to make sure 
the gap remains appropriate for the work load in a particular job in the future. Mr. Garriga 
said the Board has been very generous with salary increases for employees. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if anything is in the budget to reflect revenues for over-bids 
in the past. Comptroller Tom Arnold said yes, it was part of another line item before. 
Unfortunately it was left out of the FY 09 budget by mistake.   
 
Supervisor Medlin asked about the amount that is left in the fund for county wide insurance. 
Mr. Garriga said the ending cash balance which had been decreasing, has leveled off and we 
are hoping that amount will build back up. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell verified that the salary increases in the budget are 4%. Mr. Garriga 
said yes. Supervisor Medlin said he agrees with Supervisor Lewis that when we give 
increases, we need to consider the gap that it creates between lower and higher paid 
employees. He suggested that a committee be assigned to discuss and consider this issue 
before the FY 09 budget. Supervisor Russell said it makes a difference when elected officials 
do not abide by the same set of guidelines as would other county employees. He said he 
hopes the new human resources manager will look at that issue. Mr. Garriga said salaries are 
a difficult issue in both the public and private sector. 
 
Supervisor Latimer asked if anyone was present to discuss the budget. Mr. Ed Williams who 
lives in Trinity Lakes in Southaven came forward. He said he appreciates that the Board of 
Supervisors is not increasing the millage but residents did receive a tax increase. He said this 
is the first place he has lived where elected officials did not lower the millage to whatever the 
previous taxes were in the event of reassessment. Mr. Williams said he did not know if the 
Board of Supervisors was aware of the average wage increase during the past three years 
nationwide. He said it was a negative .7%. Supervisor Bill Russell asked where Mr. Williams 
got his figures. He said his daughter got it off of the internet. He said senior citizens get taxed 
more than regular people due to the $75,000 exemption. He said most taxes will go up 
between 30% and 100% in the county. Supervisor Latimer asked Mr. Williams if he is 
considering both city and county taxes in his tax increase. Mr. Williams said yes. He said the 
schools said there would be no tax increase and that is debatable. Mr. Williams said he would 
suggest the Sheriff go out to Phoenix, Arizona to see how that sheriff handles their prisoners. 
He said taxpayers would save money if we fed prisoners peanut butter and jelly and housed 
them in tents. Sheriff Rasco said we have the cost for food for prisoners down to $1.27 per 
meal per day for feeding the prisoners. He said we are at capacity at 395 inmates and we have 
to accommodate the inmate population in the jail. Mr. Williams said that this county is no 
longer growing; it has peaked. He said the Florida school budget has a problem with people 
leaving Florida because of hurricanes and insurance issues.   
 
Sheriff Bill Rasco said not all of the people who are in jail have been convicted of crimes.  
Inmates must be treated according to guidelines set for jails.  Mr. Williams said he 
appreciates that.  He said his step-father was chief deputy at a jail. 
 
Andi Lehman of Lambert Cove in Hernando said she had a question.  She said she sent 
several letters concerning the library.  She asked if she could look at a copy of the budget. 
Mr. Garriga said the county can get one for her.  Ms. Lehman said next year she would like 
to see the budget before it is approved.  She asked if all of the department’s budgets are 
stagnant.  Mr. Garriga said the library is not the only department who received a level budget.  



_______                           3                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

Ms. Lehman asked that the Board reconsider keeping the library budget at a flat rate.  She 
said people love the library.  She said our library is well thought of and she knows the Board 
is thought highly of because of their past support of the library.  She said, if the County finds 
any extra money, please use it for the library.  She said there are a lot of citizens who love the 
library.   
 
Supervisor Latimer said everyone on the Board appreciates the great job the library does.  He 
said the library is a great asset to this county.   
 
Supervisor Medlin said the Board has to be careful not to use “one time money” for the 
budget.  He said he expects the county budget money to be leaner next year.   
 
Mr. Williams asked if the county funds the Southaven Library.  Supervisor Thach said both 
the city and the county do.  Supervisor Medlin said the county appropriated $1.2 million 
dollars to cover the furniture and part of the construction of the Southaven Library.  
Comptroller Tom Arnold said that cost was above the yearly budget for the Library.   
 
Elisabeth Burgess said she is on the Board of Trustees for the Horn Lake Library.  Last year 
it was her understanding, in order to give a raise, the Library had to go into their book fund.  
Computer usage is high.  She said please give the Library more so they can give their people 
raises.  Ms. Burgess said, not only has her assessment increased, but she looses the 
exemption for Over 65 because her mother died.   
 
Ms. Lehman asked if the 4% increase for county employees includes the library employees.  
Mr. Garriga said the library employees are not county employees.  He explained that the 
county gives the library an appropriation.  Mr. Garriga said he would compare the library to 
the civic center employees.  Ms. Lehman said she does not think that is an equitable 
comparison.  She said she thinks the Board should cut county employees salary increases 
back to 3 ½% and give the extra money to the library.    
 
Supervisor Latimer said the Board of Supervisors does not have authority to tell the Library 
Board what to do with their money.  Catherine Nathan agreed. 
 
Sarah Camp of the B. J. Chain Library in Olive Branch addressed the Board about the library 
budget.  She said she wants to make the Board aware of what the library does.  She said, 
when she was in school, we only had a one room library in the school.  She said the last 
information on users of the Olive Branch showed that the library serviced 4,000 people per 
week.  She said the parking lot is always full.  She said they have two day care centers and 
one Head Start Center that takes advantage of what the library offers.  She said many of these 
children do not have children’s books available.  She said we have a chance to introduce 
learning through books to children in the summer.  She discussed their Summer Reading 
Program.  She said they have a large number of senior citizens that like to read daily.  She 
said they have 17 computers in the Olive Branch Library.  They are almost always busy and 
people are waiting in line for their turn to use the computers. She said users do research for 
school and they have a lot of adults who come in to look for jobs.  She said we know how 
important it is to be computer literate in this world.  She said they have also started 
displaying art work from local artists.  Ms. Camp said one 86 year old man has even begun to 
teach art.  She said that is an example of how every new library feature seems to branch out 
to new opportunities.  She said their library is not just a building with books.  She asked the 
Board to please reconsider the 2009 budget for the library.   
 
Supervisor Latimer asked if the Board recently helped with funding for the parking lot.  
Supervisor Medlin said we have plans to improve the road and parking lot.  
 
Catherine Nathan said the library’s Early Childhood Specialist was on standby through a 
program at Mississippi State where there would be temporary day care for children during a 
storm event.  She said several evacuees will visit the library to check emails, etc.  Ms. Nathan 
said she understands the situation with the county budget.  Ms. Nathan said this is a regional 
library program and there are five counties in the region.  All of the counties contribute 
millage to the library.  Ms. Nathan said she goes to every county and city in the region to 



_______                           4                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

request money for the library.  She said the Board of Supervisors is the sole support for the 
Walls Library.  She said, on behalf of John Echols and the other trustees, she comes with 
appreciation for all the Board of Supervisors’ help with the library this past year.  She said 
she cannot tell all the things the county does for the library including maintenance.  She said 
the Southaven Library opened on March 1st.  She said that Southaven and Olive Branch 
Libraries are now open on Sunday afternoon and doing a good business.  It has become a real 
family experience on Sunday afternoons.  She said the county received a good return on their 
money last year.  She said the library would have purchased more computers, books, 
magazines, etc. for the libraries if the extra $250,000 that was requested was funded.  She 
said the Board may be interested to know that 84 people work in the Desoto County libraries.  
She said this total is less than half of the total work force of the First Regional Libraries.  She 
said personnel makes up a large portion of the libraries’ budget.  She said she requests that 
the Board consider $32,025 to allow her to offer the same raise to library employees that the 
county will offer to county employees. Ms. Nathan thanked the Board for their continued 
support.   
 
Supervisor Thach asked what percent of the library’s budget that each county provides.  Ms. 
Nathan said DeSoto County has five libraries and they are open full time.  Panola County has 
four libraries and only one is open full time.  Lafayette County has one library facility and 
Tunica County one library facility as well.  In Tate County there are two libraries.  One is 
open full time and the other is almost full time.  She said it is hard to compare by percentage.  
The total budget she was hoping for during the coming year was $5.5 million.  Memphis has 
a $16 million budget but DeSoto County offers a better library system than they do.  She said 
the money the Board of Supervisors contributes is significant.  She said only 20% of the 
county contributions goes to the regional system.   
 
Supervisor Latimer asked if the cities have increased their contributions to the library.  Ms. 
Nathan said Horn Lake approved $98,000 of a $100,000 request.  Southaven budgets 
millage.  She said she thinks they will be at $305,000 next year.  Ms. Nathan said they 
requested $360,000 from the county and $275,000 from the city in Lafayette County.  She 
said their library budget is $603,213.  She said she does everything she can to convert public 
money to goods and purchases in the libraries.   
 
Supervisor Medlin said the County currently allocates $1.25 million for the Library.  He 
clarified that the $32,000 is an additional request.  Ms. Nathan said yes, and that does not 
include regional employees.  Supervisor Medlin verified that Ms. Nathan does have a 
contingency fund.  Ms. Nathan said yes.  They try to keep 3 ½ months of payroll in the fund.  
She said the contingency fund is down.  She said a lot of the contingency money is special 
grant funds where the use of the money is designated.  She said sometimes people give 
money with the stipulation that the library can only use the interest on the money for library 
purposes.  Sometimes they specify that the interest can only be used to purchase books.   
 
Supervisor Russell said the $32,025 would provide a 4% pay increase to all of the employees 
in DeSoto County.  Ms. Nathan said no sir.  That is only the employees in the five libraries.  
She said that does not include the 23 regional headquarters staff.  To provide them with a 4% 
raise would take an additional $25,000.  Supervisor Russell asked what they did last year for 
their employees.  Ms. Nathan said she believes it was 4%.  Supervisor Russell asked what the 
current proposed budget would give employees.  Ms. Nathan said she would have to cut 
services to provide an increase.  
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Tommy Lewis seconded the 
motion to approve an additional $32,025 to the library budget over what is proposed for 
FY09.  The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
 

 Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Eugene C. Thach-----------NO 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Allen Latimer---------------NO 

   Supervisor Tommy Lewis--------------YES 
 



_______                           5                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

Supervisor Latimer said he cannot vote for the increase because he does not know where the 
money will come from in the county budget.   
 
Carolyn Richards said she knows the Board is saying they are not increasing the millage rate.  
She asked when county employees received the last pay raise.  Supervisor Thach said they 
get a raise every year.  Ms. Richards said the last time her husband received a raise was in 
1998.  The last time she received a raise was in 2000.  She said, since she has lived in her 
house, her taxes have doubled.  A lot of people are not getting raises.  Everything is going up, 
she said.  She said she knew the library is doing a good job but wants the Board to keep in 
mind that a lot of people do not get pay raises every year.  Mrs. Richards said we are going to 
get a tax increase in January.  She said she hopes the Board will keep the same millage rate.  
Otherwise, the people will have another increase the following year.  She said a few years 
back the people had an increase from the schools.  She said people on fixed incomes do not 
get a raise.  Supervisor Latimer said the state requires the wording in the advertisement that 
went into the paper.  It is confusing.   
 
Carolyn Hobbs addressed the Board of Supervisors and thanked them for consideration of the 
people speaking about the library budget. She said they are well represented and she had one 
request for the Board. She asked if each of the Board members would spend half of one day 
in the library. Ms. Hobbs said people are checking out books and asking many questions. Ms. 
Hobbs said she thinks the Board would enjoy their time in the library and they would be very 
proud of the library system in DeSoto County. 
 
Peggy Linton addressed the Board of Supervisors and thanked them for allowing Volunteer 
Northwest Mississippi assistance in the budget. She thanked the Board for contributions to 
Volunteer Northwest Mississippi. She said they notified their volunteers during the previous 
hurricane event and many volunteers came to EMA to help. She said the volunteer group is 
not heavily staffed. She said they have one person who is a volunteer coordinator. Ms. Linton 
said that she is the director. Supervisor Lewis thanked Peggy Linton for the job she does for 
the county. Ms. Linton said the praise belongs to the taxpayers and those who volunteer for 
the jobs.  
 
Ann Ashcraft came forward and thanked the Board of Supervisors for their support for the 
museum. 
 
Supervisor Latimer asked if anyone else present wished to come before the Board with 
questions about the budget. No one came forward. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Eugene Thach seconded the 
motion to close the Public Hearing for the budget for FY 09. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote. 
 
Supervisor Allen Latimer said the county has completed the Public Hearing on the budget.  
 
Mr. Garriga said we need to discuss the millage levy. He said the millage levy has been 
prepared with no changes in the levy from FY 08. Mr. Garriga said that includes the schools 
budget, solid waste and debt service as well. He said the millage for the school operations 
and community colleges and drainage districts and all other levies remain the same. 
Comptroller Tom Arnold said the Walls sewer levy went down this year. He said everything 
else is the same.  
 
Supervisor Latimer asked if there was anymore discussion on the budget. 
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the motion 
to adopt the budget for FY 09 and millage at 98.30 mills for county purposes and special levy 
millages as requested as follows: 

 
IN THE MATTER OF LEVYING COUNTY AND 

AD VALOREM TAXES FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2008-2009 

INCLUDING ROAD MAINTENANCE, SCHOOL DISTRICTAND ANY OTHER TAXING DISTRICTS 



_______                           6                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

It is ordered and adjudged by the Board of Supervisors of DeSoto County that the following ad valorem tax rates, or 
levies, be and the same hereby are, imposed and levied for fiscal year 2008-2009, upon all taxable property in DeSoto 
County, State of Mississippi, and in the County school district, drainage districts and any other taxing districts in 
DeSoto County as the same are now assessed and listed or may hereinafter be assessed and listed on the Assessment 
Rolls of said County, as of January 1, 2008 upon each dollar of valuation. 

 
                                  LEVIED 

PURPOSE OF LEVY                           MILLS 
 

FOR DESOTO COUNTY GENERAL FUND: 
 
(1) Levy authorized by Section 27-39-329, Mississippi Code of 1972   4.00 
 General County      3.00 mills 
 General County Mandatory (current 
 Expenses and maintenance authorized 
 By Section 27-39-329 (2)(b), Mississippi Code of 1972) 1.00 mill 
(2) For General County purposes (current expense and maintenance 
 authorized by Section 27-39-303, Miss. Code of 1972)   21.28 
 
This levy for 21.28 mills for General County purposes is for the following items: office 
and administration, judicial, law enforcement, assistance to individuals, farm and home  
services, operation and maintenance of buildings and grounds, economic opportunities, 
advertising county resources, libraries, county health, soil and water conservation,  
emergency medical services and operations, as shown by the budget to be adopted by  
the Board of Supervisors in accordance with the regulations of the State Audit Department. 
 
 TOTAL GENERAL COUNTY……………………………………………….………….25.28 
 
(3) For maintenance and construction of roads, as authorized by Section 
 27-39-305, Code of 1972.       3.00 
 
(4) For county-wide maintenance and construction of bridges and  

culverts, as authorized by Section 65-15-7, Code of 1972   5.84 
 
 TOTAL MAINTENANCE OF ROADS AND BRIDGES…………………….…………8.84 
 
(5) For operation of the solid waste disposal program and the rubbish 

pit, authorized by Section 19-5-21, Code of 1972    1.32 
 

TOTAL SOLID WASTE…………………….…………………………………………….1.32 
 

(6) Courthouse renovation bonds, interest and sinking (Section 19-9-9)   .14 
 
(7) 1998 County-wide refunding bonds, interest and sinking (Section 19-9-9)  .40 
 
(8) 2002 $8.19 million refunding bonds, interest and sinking  

(Section 19-9-9)         .60 
 
(9) $18 million general obligation bonds, interest and sinking  

(Section 19-9-9)                    1.54 
 
(10) 2003 $9.3 million refunding bonds, interest and sinking (Section 19-9-9)  .60 
 
(11) 2004 $22 million bonds (Section 19-9-9)                 1.50 
 
(12) 2005 $6.960 million refunding bonds, interest and sinking (Section 19-9-9)  .80 

 
 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE…………………………..……………………………..……….5.58 
 
 
TOTAL DESOTO COUNTY………….…………………………………………………………..41.02          
 
 
 FOR DESOTO COUNTY SCHOOL OPERATIONS: 
 
(1) For the operations of all public schools in the DeSoto County School  

District, as required by the State Department of Education, and as 
authorized by Section 37-57-104, et. seq., Code of 1972   39.35 

 
(2) Board of Education Notes interest and sinking fund (Section 37-59-107)   2.60 
 



_______                           7                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

(3) Board of Education Bonds interest and sinking fund (Section 37-59-23)  11.22 
 
TOTAL DESOTO COUNTY SCHOOLS MILLAGE…………….………………………………53.17 
 
 FOR NORTHWEST MISSISSIPPI COMMUNITY COLLEGE OPERATIONS: 
 
(1) Support of Northwest Mississippi Community College, as authorized 

by Section 37-29-141, Code of 1972     1.99 
 
(2) Support of Northwest Mississippi Community College Building and  

Improvement Fund, as authorized by Section 37-29-141, Code of 1972  2.12 
 
TOTAL NORTHWEST MISS. COMMUNITY COLLEGE MILLAGE………………..………..4.11 
 
TOTAL EDUCATION MILLAGE………………………………………………..………………..57.28 
 
TOTAL COUNTY-WIDE MILLAGE…………………………………………………………………..…98.30 
 
 OTHER LEVIES: 
 
(1) For support of County Fire Protection Districts and Volunteer Fire Departments, 

in accordance with Section 83-1-39, Code of 1972, as follows: 
 
a. Brights/Lewisburg Fire Protection District (real property only)  1.00 
b. Walls Fire Protection District (real property only)    1.00 
c. Summershill Fire Protection District (real property only)   1.00 
d. Eudora Fire Protection District (real property only)    1.00 
e. All property, exclusive of municipalities     2.00 

 
(2) For providing fire protection, a forest acreage tax on all timbered and 

uncultivated lands in DeSoto County is hereby levied as authorized by  
Section 49-19-115, Code of 1972.      .09 per acre 

 
(3) Yazoo Mississippi Delta Joint Water Management District  

(Section 51-31-65)          .61 
 
(4) Drainage tax against all property liable therefore, as authorized by 

Orders of Records as of this date, and as authorized by Section 51-31-65, 
Code of 1972 
 
a. Cane Mussacuna Drainage District     8.00 
b. Northwest Mississippi Consolidated Drainage District   3.50 
c. Short Fork Creek Drainage District     0.25 
d. Lake Cormorant Drainage District     0.00 
e. Horn Lake Creek Watershed Drainage District    2.60 

 
(5) Walls Sewer District interest and sinking fund acreage assessment  
 (HB 39, Local and Private laws of 1990)     $13,700 
 
None of these levies exceed any of the limitations set out in Title 27, Chapter 39, Code of 1972, 
or amendments thereto. 
 
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI,  DESOTO COUNTY 
 
I, W.E. Davis, Chancery Court Clerk and ex-officio Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, in and for said County and State, 
do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the taxes levied by the Board of Supervisors at its 
September 2, 2008 meeting. 
 
Given under my hand and official seal this the 2nd day of September, 2008. 
 
(SEAL)    ________________________ 
    W.E. Davis, Chancery Clerk 
 

The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
 

 Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------YES 
      Supervisor Eugene C. Thach-----------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Allen Latimer---------------NO 

   Supervisor Tommy Lewis--------------NO 



_______                           8                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

Supervisor Allen Latimer said he knows the cost of living has gone up for employees. He 
said he liked Supervisor Lewis’ idea of implementing step raises. He said he thinks 
implementing step raises is a good long term goal. He said he thinks a 3% raise gives the 
Board flexibility. He said he likes the idea of a 3% raise and thinks we would be better off 
giving a 3% raise. 
 
Supervisor Lewis said he thinks the same way. He said he thinks it is a fair thing to do. He 
said we need to get something to do that works across the board.  
 
Supervisor Bill Russell said he does not know how step raises are going to work. He said 
there has been no indication from anyone that elected officials are planning to work with step 
raises. He said the Board cannot mandate that. He said the cost of living has gone up well 
over 5% and it would be doing a disservice to all employees to not give at least 4%. 
Supervisor Russell said he would like to give 5% as a salary increase.  
 
Supervisor Latimer said that is a point well taken. He said it is a concern for raises for people 
at the top. He said there is a concern about raising bottom pay scales.  
 
Supervisor Russell said he thinks the county is far from being able to do that. Supervisor 
Jessie Medlin said there have been one or two department heads that have considered work 
ethic when giving employee raises. He said he thinks department heads should reward 
personnel who work hard for the county and not reward those who do not. He said that would 
go a long way toward bridging the salary gap.  
 
County Administrator Michael Garriga told the Board that he hears what the Board is saying 
about compensation.  He said, between now and next year, he will develop a program to 
resolve the issues with the pay scale. Mr. Garriga said he thinks the Human Resource officer 
can help with resolving the issue as well.  
 
Mr. Garriga said he would like to offer thanks to the people who made this budget happen. 
Mr. Garriga said he was stressed about our economic condition early in the process. He said 
Tom Arnold deserves thanks because he makes the budget happen. Mr. Garriga said that 
Road Manager Russell Dorris was very cooperative during the process. He said that the 
budget trends were different than in previous years and he asked the Road Manager to make 
changes in his budget. Mr. Garriga said that Mr. Dorris made those changes very willingly. 
Mr. Garriga thanked the Sheriff for the cuts he made to his budget to make the budget work. 
He said he appreciated the Sheriff’s attitude and willingness toward helping with the budget. 
Mr. Garriga thanked his office staff and the Board of Supervisors for their support during the 
budget process. He said this is his biggest challenge of every year. Mr. Garriga offered his 
gratitude for everyone who participated in the budget process. 
 
Supervisor Russell said he would like to remind the Board that they just approved giving 
additional money to library to give their employees a 4% raise. Supervisor Thach said he is 
going to vote for the budget because we can give the 4% raises without giving a tax increase. 
He said, if it can be done without a raise in taxes and still give 4% raises, then he will motion 
for it. 
 
Supervisor Russell said he would like to make the press and everyone aware that, in his 
opinion, the no votes were not strictly about the 3% and 4% raises. He said he does not 
perceive this as a disagreement about the 4% raise across the board and there is no big 
disagreement among the Board members on this issue. He said there is a disagreement about 
how to administer the raises for upper and lower salaries. He said there is a human resources 
person coming on board that can assist in resolving this issue of how to administer raises. 

 
 

F.  CONSENT 
 
The Board of Supervisors considered the items presented on the Consent Agenda. Supervisor 
Eugene Thach made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda as follows: 



_______                           9                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

 
 1. Accounting  
 

a. Ratification of Monthly Health Claims 
 

Funding Request Date Paid Amount Claim Type 
Date       

8/1/08 8/1/08 $55,812.29 Administration Fees 
8/4/08 8/4/08 $18,917.83 Medical 
8/4/08 8/4/08 $4,919.75 Dental 
8/4/08 8/4/08 $15,085.19 Pharmacy 
8/12/08 8/13/08 $67,262.79 Medical 
8/12/08 8/13/08 $2,885.80 Dental 
8/12/08 8/13/08 $13,986.22 Pharmacy 
8/18/08 8/18/08 $85,821.26 Medical 
8/18/08 8/18/08 $4,677.30 Dental 
8/18/08 8/18/08 $20,581.75 Pharmacy 
8/25/08 8/25/08 $43,745.50 Medical 
8/25/08 8/25/08 $5,601.40 Dental 
8/25/08 8/25/08 $16,460.32 Pharmacy 

  TOTAL $355,757.40   
    
    
August Book Balance $3,145,442.19   
July Book 
Balance   $3,141,423.19   
June Book Balance $3,258,082.22   
May Book 
Balance   $3,351,176.08   
April Book Balance $3,357,976.24   
March Book Balance $3,322,779.02   

  
 b. Ratify Bond Payments 

$18,000,000.00 MS Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds 
 
 Trustmark Bank      Ck#039184     issued   8/28/08 
  
Interest  $62,668.32   215-800-802     
   Total $62,668.32 
 

2.  Justice Court Report 
 
                         Criminal Cases Filed – 112       State Assessments -      $64,922.93  
 Civil Cases Filed – 555           County General Fund - $114,864.64 
 Traffic Tickets Filed – 1,078       Total Collections -     $79,787.37 
 Total Cases Filed – 1,745 

 
3.  Bailiff Pay  

Joe Holmes - $160.00    Jason Motz -$120.00  Liz Medlin - $120.00    Lee Hodge - $160.00   
 
4.  Chancery Clerk Allowance (3)  -   $1,500.00   
 
5.  Approval of Publication of Board Proceedings 
 
6.  Metro Narcotics – Approval to Add Declaration of Forfeiture to Inventory 

One 2001 Nissan X-Terra, VIN 5N1ED28T51C514152;  $1,840.00 in U.S. Currency and One Bersa 
.380 Caliber Handgun Serial No. 406206 



_______                           10                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

 
7. Final Inventory Dispositions 
 

a. EMS, EMA & Fire 
                                Reason for    Disposed of     Location at Final 
Asset #   Serial #   Description          Disposal     By          Disposal 
33822    62306428  Minolta Digital Camera   Broken      J.Bearden      5R 
  

b. Circuit Clerk 
Reason for    Disposed of     Location at Final 

Asset #   Serial #   Description          Disposal     By          Disposal 
9066     1067     CES Crimper         Obsolete      J.Bearden      AWS 
                            Used with punch cards 

 
c. Board of Supervisors 

Reason for    Disposed of     Location at Final 
Asset #   Serial #   Description          Disposal     By          Disposal 
38039 PN204AA6P04K  PalmOne Palm Pilot     Broken      J.Bearden      5R 

 
d. Youth Services 

Reason for    Disposed of     Location at Final 
Asset #   Serial #   Description          Disposal     By          Disposal 
4001     3028031   Bell & Howell Projector   Broken      J.Bearden      5R 
4031     PV320    Panasonic           Broken      J.Bearden      5R 
1091     n/a      TDL Monitor         Broken      J.Bearden      5R 
4034     736480996 GE TV            Broken      Broken      J.Bearden      5R 
 
  8. Purchasing – Approval to Bid Jail Food 
 
  9. Department of Road Management 
 

a. Road Report and Work Schedule 
  b. Road Bond Report 
 

c. Additions to FY 2008 Asphalt Overlay – Kirk Road-from recent reconstruction of road 
by contractor for 2,965 feet approximate additional cost of $93,000.  Changes need to be 
included in the 2008-2011 Four Year Road Plan. 

  
The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
 

 Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------ABSENT 
      Supervisor Eugene C. Thach-----------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Allen Latimer---------------YES 

   Supervisor Tommy Lewis--------------ABSENT 
 
See Exhibit F 
 
 

G. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 

H.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  DeSoto Council – Greenway 
 

DeSoto County Economic and Development Council Jim Flanagan and Greenway 
Coordinator Larry Jarrett addressed the Board of Supervisors regarding the Greenway 
project. Mr. Flanagan thanked the Board for acknowledging the importance of Greenways 
and for their interest in implementing Greenways. Mr. Flanagan introduced Larry Jarrett to 
the Board. He said the committee has been involved in promoting Greenways in DeSoto 
County. Mr. Flanagan said Larry is here to present what he has been doing in the area of 
Greenways.  



_______                           11                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

 
Mr. Jarrett said he admired the Board for their vision concerning Greenways. He said DeSoto 
County is one of the few counties who have taken steps in that area. He said there is a map of 
all of the Greenway plans from May 2005 and he presented the map to the Board. Mr. Jarrett 
said we may need to update the master plan. He said there may need to be a higher priority 
for the Johnson’s Creek plan. Mr. Jarrett thanked Bill Austin for working with the 
landowners on behalf of the Greenways. He said that Entergy and DCRUA have presented 
opportunities to do something with Greenways early on. He said he knew that Bill Austin had 
put a lot of work into do that. He said a few smaller landowners say they are willing to help. 
He said, with those three landowners, it could go a long toward starting the project.   
 
Supervisor Latimer asked if there will also be a horse trail. Mr. Jarrett said it can be anything 
the county wants it to be. He said this will be a win win for other landowners who have plans 
for future equestrian farms. He said we are at the point of working with the landowners on 
conservation easements and that brings up the point of creating a land trust. Everyday there 
are landowners who are willing to donate property that they want to protect. Once the land 
trust is created, we can actually begin the process. He said the committee is soliciting profiles 
for a Board of Directors for the Land Trust. The Land Trust is drafted in such a way so that it 
can expand. They have applied for a 501C3 designation. When that is complete, they are 
ready to go.  
 
Supervisor Bill Russell said he has some trouble understanding land trusts. Mr. Jarrett said 
the land trust protects the land by buying easements. They can be tailored for landowner’s 
individual needs. He said they can center around natural features. They cover historical 
significance and there are tax benefits for landowners who put their property in a land trust. 
Private property rights are still maintained by the landowner. 
 
Supervisor Russell asked if grants are available for the land trust. Mr. Jarrett said yes.  
 
Supervisor Latimer asked, if he puts 200 acres into the land trust and someone gets hurt on 
his private property that is not in the land trust, who is liable. Mr. Jarrett said you can post 
signs to indicate what is public and what is private. Doing so, would eliminate or reduce a 
landowner’s liability. He said the trespass issue came up in Pontotoc County. He said having 
access to the land trust does not allow an individual to trespass onto private property. 
 
Supervisor Russell said one thing in the meeting last week that impressed him, was the 
participation from the cities. He said they have not agreed to come up with any money, but he 
thinks they will. 
 
Supervisor Tommy Lewis said he would assume in a land trust someone donates the property 
and it comes off of the county tax roll. Board Attorney Tony Nowak said taxes are still paid 
if all that is given is an easement to the trust, however, may effect the assessed value of the 
underlying property. Supervisor Lewis said his concern is what property will be coming off 
of the land roll. Mr. Jarrett said Holly Springs has two homes in a land trust and they pay 
taxes. Supervisor Lewis said he understands the benefits but he wants to know how it will 
affect the tax base. Supervisor Latimer questioned that we may not have to accept every 
offer. Mr. Jarrett said that is correct. He presented a list of projects in other areas of 
Mississippi who have successfully started projects. He said the DeSoto Greenway Project has 
applied for an ALCOA Foundation Grant and he has high hopes for that grant. He introduced 
other grant opportunities including Green Infrastructure Training. Mr. Jarrett said he and 
other representatives will spend next week in Virginia to train on Green infrastructure plans. 
That training will be paid for through this grant.  
 
Supervisor Medlin said that Mr. Jarrett mentioned Toyota giving a grant to another project. 
Mr. Jarrett said the funding deadline is over but there will be another round of funding next 
year.  
 
Supervisor Medlin said, under our PUD developments, we have developers set aside 10% of 
their property for common area or open space. Sometimes this is not as desirable parcel of 
land as you would hope. Perhaps we could give 60% to the homeowner’s association and 



_______                           12                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

40% to the land trust. Mr. Garriga said he does not see any reason why we could not do that. 
He said they have talked about that or similar situations in the past. He said they applied that 
to the Hawks Crossing Development.  
 
Supervisor Russell said there may be times we would say to the developer, give us 5 acres or 
5% and give us money to go toward the land trust to equal the value of the other 5 acres of 
property or the amount necessary for their10% they would have given under the 
requirements.  
 
Planning Director Jim McDougal said the Greenway idea allows for flexibility. The more 
you think about it the more possibilities come about. There are a lot of ideas to look at in the 
future. 
 
Supervisor Russell asked Mr. McDougal if he will meet with all of the cities. Mr. McDougal 
said yes. 
 
Mr. Garriga said he wanted to remind the Board of how progressive this Board has been and 
Greenways is just another example of why DeSoto County is a great place to be. He said this 
is more than a trend with Greenways; it is a way of life.     See Exhibit H.1 
  

 
2. Preliminary Inventory Dispositions 
 

Inventory Clerk Amy Henley presented preliminary inventory dispositions to the Board of 
Supervisors. Supervisor Tommy Lewis asked if all of the computers listed for the IT 
Department are actually from that department. Ms. Henley said no, computers are transferred 
to the IT Department when they are taken out of a department because there is an issue. The 
IT Department either re-assigns the computer to another department, repairs it for future use 
or disposes of the computer. 
 
Supervisor Tommy Lewis made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the motion 
to approve the preliminary inventory dispositions as follows: 
 
a. Emergency Services 
 

Asset # Serial # Description Reason for Disposal Location  at Preliminary 

30337 4077348 Gateway PC Broken/parts only EMA Ofc. 

31032 21793704 Pentium PC Broken EMA Ofc. 

33319 3181355 Gateway PC Broken/parts only EMA Ofc. 

30415 14935936 Gateway PC Broken EMS Ofc. 

33328 n/a Homelite Chainsaw Broken EMA Ofc. 

1066 9995900 GE Low Band Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

5024 n/a Uniden Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

31183 10700385 Kenwood Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

31184 11003157 Kenwood Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

31186 90600183 Kenwood Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

31187 6008040 Kenwood Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

31237 60700532 Kenwood Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

33080 402AWU5129XW3 Motorola H/H Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

33084 402AXJ0846Z Motorola H/H Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

33085 402AUY8071Z Motorola H/H Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

33086 402AUSO459X Motorola H/H Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

33087 402AUY8089Z Motorola H/H Radio Parts only EMA Ofc. 

 



_______                           13                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

 
 
b. Information Technology 

 
 
The motion passed by a unanimous vote.      See Exhibit H.2 
 
 

3. Environmental Services – Household Hazardous Waste Day 
 

Operations and Compliance Jim Bearden said he checked with Stewart Taylor at the Civic 
Center and he has agreed to let the county use the parking lot at the Civic Center for 
Household Hazardous Waste Day. DEQ agrees for October 4th to be designated as Household 
Hazardous Waste Day in DeSoto County.  
 
Supervisor Bill Russell asked if the tire trailer can be placed at Lake Cormorant. Mr. Bearden 
said he has already checked into that and will talk to Supervisor Russell about that issue.  
 
Mr. Bearden said the E-Waste trailer will be set up at the Civic Center on Household 
Hazardous Day.  
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked if we will get a grant for Household Hazardous Day this year. 
Mr. Bearden said he was told that we would be able to get a grant. He said we are starting the 
paperwork on the grant now. He said we have ranged $20,000 to $22,000 per year on the 
grant. 
 
Supervisor Eugene Thach seconded the motion to approve October 4, 2008 from 8:00 a. till 
3:00 p.m. as Household Hazardous Waste Day in DeSoto County. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote. 
 
  

4. Stormwater Awareness Week 
 

Stormwater Enforcement Officer Ray Laughter addressed the Board of Supervisors regarding 
Stormwater Awareness Week. He said that he and Scott Young and Tiffany Herd have been 
meeting with School Board on Stormwater Awareness Week. He said they have decided on a 

Asset # Serial # Description Reason for Disposal Location  at Preliminary
8149 23AAGH9 IBM PC Broken I.T. Dept. 

730040 0174001 IBM Printer Broken I.T. Dept. 
8171 2348212 IBM Terminal Broken I.T. Dept. 

35580 AC4408D00700 Classic Camera Broken I.T. Dept. 
30807 25315600001 Micron PC Broken I.T. Dept. 
31120 2856447001 Micron PC Broken I.T. Dept. 
31252 0024299479 Gateway PC Broken I.T. Dept. 

730058 2347267 IBM Terminal Broken I.T. Dept. 
30863 27911860001 Micron PC Broken I.T. Dept. 
8152 2115816 IBM Monitor Broken I.T. Dept. 
6083 3613801 IBM Monitor Broken I.T. Dept. 

33471 HNDH341 Dell PC Broken I.T. Dept. 
33412 723LP31 Dell PC Broken I.T. Dept. 
33397 5KMCN31 Dell Tower Broken I.T. Dept. 
30519 0014975485 HP Printer Broken I.T. Dept. 
30808 MY06L1C156 HP Deskjet Prt Broken I.T. Dept. 
36709 DR20258000085 Dlink Switch Broken I.T. Dept. 
32154 0024433136 Gateway PC Broken I.T. Dept. 
35567 MJ19HCJX925717 Samsung LCD Broken I.T. Dept. 
33396 GJMCN31 Dell PC Broken I.T. Dept. 
36525 720ZTZY Lexmark E234 Broken I.T. Dept. 
30504 SG960130Q0 HP Printer Broken I.T. Dept. 
31252 0024299479 Gateway PC Broken I.T. Dept. 
34121 E85Z3B60995V Proview Monitor Broken I.T. Dept. 
31395 1540SBC25602413 KDS Monitor Broken I.T. Dept. 
287 ESA6AO3893 HP Plotter Broken I.T. Dept. 



_______                           14                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

curriculum that will be taught in the schools for one week in September. Mr. Laughter said 
the School Board has agreed to let different volunteers come in and read to the children about 
stormwater issues. He said a lot of people throughout the county have volunteered to read to 
the children. He said they are asking the cities and counties to consider declaring the week of 
September 15-19 as Stormwater Awareness Week.  
 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Eugene Thach second to proclaim 
September 15 through September 19, 2008, Stormwater Awareness Week in DeSoto County.  
The motion passed by a unanimous vote.     See Exhibit H.4 
 
 

5. Accounting 
 

a. Claims Docket 
 

Comptroller Tom Arnold and Stephanie Hanks of the Accounting Department presented the 
claims docket to be paid for various departments. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell asked about the Coroner activity on the claims docket. Comptroller 
Tom Arnold said this amount is for autopsies and other charges including transportation of 
bodies. County Administrator Michael Garriga said that autopsy fees increased from $550 to 
$1,000 each in July.  
 
Supervisor Tommy Lewis said the County Engineer has some culverts in his budget. He 
asked if that is correct. Road Manager Russell Dorris said yes, those culverts are for the 
Belmor Lakes Subdivision project. 
 
In accordance with Section 19-13-31 and Section 19-11-23 of the Mississippi Code 
annotated, Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Tommy Lewis seconded 
the motion to authorize the Chancery Clerk to pay the bills as presented by the Comptroller. 
The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
 

 Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------ABSENT 
      Supervisor Eugene C. Thach-----------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Allen Latimer---------------YES 

   Supervisor Tommy Lewis--------------YES 
See Exhibit H.5.a 
 
b. Late Bill 
 
Comptroller Tom Arnold explained that this request is from the Justice Court Judges to 
approve travel and training and purchase of three robes as follows: 
 
Per a request by Justice Court Judge Ken Adams, we ask that the board approve the following expenditures to 
be paid when the appropriate documentation is obtained from the judges. 

 
American Institute for Justice - $4,800 for tuition fees for a seminar in November, 2008. for the 4 judges) 
 
Professional Judicial Development Conference in Philadelphia, MS.-$1,200.This is a required CPE for the judges. 
 
Oak Hall Cap & Gown - $1,267.50 for 3 judicial robes for three judges.   

 
Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the motion 
to approve the late bill for the American Institute for Justice - $4,800 for tuition fees for a 
seminar in November, 2008. for the 4 judges). Professional Judicial Development 
Conference in Philadelphia, MS.-$1,200.This is a required CPE for the judges. Oak Hall 
Cap & Gown - $1,267.50 for 3 judicial robes for three judges. 

 
Supervisor Tommy Lewis made the motion and Supervisor Eugene Thach made the motion 
to pay the travel for the Justice Court Judges from the FY 08 budget. The motion passed by a 
vote as follows: 



_______                           15                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

 
 Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------ABSENT 

      Supervisor Eugene C. Thach-----------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Allen Latimer---------------YES 

   Supervisor Tommy Lewis--------------YES 
 
See Exhibit H.5.b 
 
 

6. Tax Assessor – Approval to Refund Erroneous Assessment 
 

Supervisor Tommy Lewis made the motion and Supervisor Eugene Thach seconded the 
motion to carry this item over until September 3, 2008. The motion passed by a unanimous 
vote.     See Exhibit H.6 
 

 
7. Park Fund District 5 – Hernando Youth Sports 
 

Supervisor Tommy Lewis made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the motion 
to authorize paying $2,000 from the FY 08 budget from the District 5 Park Fund to the 
Hernando Youth Sports Association allocation. The motion passed by a vote as follows: 
 

 Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------ABSENT 
      Supervisor Eugene C. Thach-----------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Allen Latimer---------------YES 

   Supervisor Tommy Lewis--------------YES 
 

 
8. Board Attorney 
 

a. Richard Barnes Lease Agreement 
At the recommendation of the Board Attorney, Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and 
Supervisor Eugene Thach seconded the motion to approve a lease agreement with Richard 
Barnes who provides parking space for the Robertson Donald Park on Highway 301 at $60 
per year. The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 
 
b. Hooks Van Holm – HUD 
 
At the recommendation of the Board Attorney, Supervisor Tommy Lewis made the motion 
and Supervisor Jessie Medlin seconded the motion to authorize the Smith, Phillips, Mitchell, 
Scott and Nowak Law Firm to investigate the claim that was received from HUD on the 
Hooks Van Holm property that was connected to the tax sale and to authorize the Smith, 
Phillips, Mitchell, Scott and Nowak Law Firm to handle this matter in a manner necessary to 
bring it to a legal conclusion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 
 
c. Advocate Income Records Request 
 
Board Attorney Tony Nowak said the Sheriff’s office received information from a group 
called Advocate Income requesting a list of people terminated or disciplined. The Sheriff’s 
office previously responded this request, but Advocate Income has requested more 
information from the Sheriff’s office. There is a fine line on the information that can be given 
out and what cannot be turned over for personnel matters. Supervisor Latimer asked if this 
group is a legitimate company.  Sheriff Bill Rasco said yes. Mr. Nowak said the concern is 
that they do not receive more information than they are entitled receive under the Public 
Records Act. Supervisor Russell asked if we can recover cost for the time it takes to provide 
this information. Mr. Nowak said yes, the county can charge a reasonable fee for copies and 
time spent researching and consolidating records. The Board and Mr. Nowak acknowledged 



_______                           16                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

that appropriate information should be given but we should be careful not to reveal 
information that is not appropriate under the Public Records Act regarding personnel issues.  
 
Supervisor Bill Russell made the motion and Supervisor Jessie Medlin seconded the motion 
to authorize the Smith, Phillips, Mitchell, Scott and Nowak Law Firm to assist with the 
response to Advocate Income regarding the information they requested. The motion passed 
by a unanimous vote. 
 
 

9. Dept. of Road Management – Charles Drive  
 

Road Manager Russell Dorris said on July 1, 2000, all counties were required to develop a 
county road map. Mr. Dorris said there is a subdivision off of Craft Road in the Allison and 
Britt Subdivision that has a road that is in the plat of the subdivision. No roads were 
constructed or homes built on the property. He said there is a gentleman who wants the 
county to build a road to his lot. Mr. Dorris said he feels this is deeded property that belongs 
to the county. The road was not built by the developer. 
 
Board Attorney Tony Nowak said the Board could build a road if it is determined there is a 
public need and necessity to build the road. The Board discussed that this gentleman is the 
only beneficiary of the road and building the road would not benefit the public at this time. 
 
Supervisor Eugene Thach made the motion and Supervisor Jessie Medlin seconded the 
motion for the county not to build this road as requested.  The motion passed by a unanimous 
vote. 
 
 

I.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

The executive session portion of these minutes is recorded under the portion of the minutes 
called  "Executive Session". 

 
 

J.  OTHER ISSUES 
 

1.  Contracts - County Consulting Engineer 
 

Board Attorney Tony Nowak said one of the agreements that was previously approved by 
the Board of Supervisors for the County Consulting Engineer Daniel Murphy, did not say 
that current work assignments were covered by the agreement. He said he has made that 
revision and is submitting it to the Board of Supervisors for their approval.  
 
At the recommendation of the Board Attorney, Supervisor Tommy Lewis made the motion 
and Supervisor Eugene Thach seconded the motion to approve the revised agreement for the 
County Consulting Engineer Daniel Murphy for engineering work for DeSoto County. The 
motion passed by a vote as follows: 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin---------------ABSENT 
      Supervisor Eugene C. Thach-----------YES 
   Supervisor Bill Russell------------------YES 
   Supervisor Allen Latimer---------------YES 

   Supervisor Tommy Lewis--------------YES 
 
 

2.  Budget 2009 County Park Funds 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin asked about getting a cost to build a walking trail at Red Banks 
Road.   
 



_______                           17                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

Supervisor Bill Russell said he has some work to do in the District 3 Parks that would 
amount to approximately $20,000. He said he would like to carry this money over in the 
next budget. The Board of Supervisors discussed carrying Park Fund money over to the next 
budget year. Supervisor Medlin said that he would not be able to accomplish the work he 
would like to do during the remainder of this budget year.  
 
Supervisor Eugene Thach made the motion and Supervisor Bill Russell seconded the motion 
to carry over the park funds from the Board of Supervisors Park Funds to the FY 09 budget. 
The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 
 
 

3.  NACO Prescription Drug Program 
 

Supervisor Bill Russell asked that Vanessa Lynchard check into the county NACO 
prescription program and report back to the Board.  
 
 

4.  Legislative Request – 2009 
 

Supervisor Bill Russell asked if we need to get legislative approval regarding the county’s 
ability to work on private property.  Board Attorney Tony Nowak said he had some 
information regarding that subject. 
 
 

5.  Litigation – County’s Notice of Class Action Lawsuit 
Chancery Clerk Sluggo Davis presented information pertaining to a Class Action Lawsuit 
that he recently received. The Board of Supervisors asked that the information be given to 
the Board Attorney. 
 
 

6.  Coldwater River 
 

Supervisor Allen Latimer asked if the project has started at the Coldwater River. Road 
Manager Russell Dorris said he heard that the Corp of Engineers has let the contract but he 
does not think work has begun yet. 
 
 

7.  Litter Week 
 

Supervisor suggested getting a litter week started. Supervisor Russell said he thinks MDOT 
has already set aside a week to focus on litter.  County Administrator Michael Garriga said 
he would check into that and let the Board know. 
 
 

8.  Nesbit Water Association 
 

Supervisor Allen Latimer said some residents were not notified by the Nesbit Water 
Association about the water supply problem that recently occurred. Supervisor Latimer said 
that he was asked if the county could send letters to the participants.  
 
County Administrator Michael Garriga said the county could help to get information out by 
putting the information on the county web site or sending a letter by combining resources 
with Nesbit Water Association if that would help. 
 
Supervisor Eugene Thach said that the county does not have any authority over water 
associations. 
 
Supervisor Bill Russell asked if the Health Department would have some authority in that 
particular case. Supervisor Thach said he does not think the Board should be sending letters 
on behalf of water associations. 



_______                           18                         09/02/2008  
 A.B.L.  

 
Supervisor Latimer said he knows the Board does not have the authority, but he wants to 
keep the people informed and safe. 

9.  Building and Grounds – Justice Court 
 

Supervisor Allen Latimer thanked Michael Garriga and Kenny Evans for their work on the  
Justice Court building.   
 
 

10.  Late Bill  
 

At the recommendation of the Comptroller Tom Arnold, Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the 
motion and Supervisor Jessie Medlin seconded the motion to transfer $16,000 to the Juror 
Account for the Circuit Clerk’s office. The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 
 
 

11.  EMA - Hurricane Gustav 
 

Supervisor Allen Latimer thanked Emergency Services Director Bobby Storey and his staff 
for their work with the effects of Hurricane Gustav. He said the volunteers and employees 
stepped up to work on the people’s behalf. Mr. Storey thanked the Board and the County 
Administrator for their support during the storm event. He said there was 1,328 rooms 
occupied during the event, 376 people are in shelters and some are leaving today and some 
tomorrow. Supervisor Latimer asked about the other storms that are forming and heading 
this direction. Mr. Storey said the county is on stand-by to respond to those events as well.   
 
Sheriff Bill Rasco said that the Sheriff’s Department has four officers in Poplarville helping 
with the storm effects now. 
 
 

Supervisor Jessie Medlin made the motion and Supervisor Tommy Lewis seconded the motion to 
recess the meeting until September 3, 2008, at 9:00 a.m. The motion passed by a unanimous vote. 
 
 
THIS the 2nd day of September 2008, these minutes have been read and approved by the DeSoto 
County Board of Supervisors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   _________________________________ 
Allen Latimer, President 
DeSoto County Board of Supervisors  


